duly 15, 2004

Wm. Scott Stinebaugh

Deputy Director - Utilities Operations

Utilities Department, Subregional Wagtewater Redamation Sysem
City of SantaRosa

4300 Llano Road

Santa Rosa, Cdifornia 95407

RE: Notice of Violationsand Intent to File Suit Under the Clean Water Act
Dear Mr. Stinebaugh:

Section 505(b) of the Federd Water Pollution Control Act (“Clean Water Act” or “CWA”)
requires that Sxty (60) days prior to theinitigtionof acivil action under § 505(a) of the Cleen Water Adt,
33 U.SC. 81365(a), ctizens mugt give natice of thar intent to sue to the dleged vidlaor, the U.S
Environmenta Protection Agency, the State in which the violations occur and the registered agent for the
dleged vidaor.

Northern Cdifornia River Watch (“River Watch”) hereby places the City of SantaRosa (“City”)
on notice that after the expiration of Sty (60) days from the date of thisNOT | CE, River Watch intends
to bring suit in Federd Didrict Court againg the City for the City’s continuing violations of “an efluent
Sandard or limitation” or “an order issued by the Adminidrator or a State with respect to such sandard
or limitation” under 8§ 505(a)(1) of the Cleen Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §1365(8)(1), by failing to comply with
the conditionsand limitationsof itsNationa Pollutant Discharge Blimination System (“NPDES’) permit No.
CA0022764 (“Permit”) issued by the Regiond Water Quadlity Control Board, North Coast Region
(“RWQCB") pursuant to CWA 8§ 402.

The City’s Lagunawagtewater treetment facility located in the County of Sonoma, Cdlifornia, has
violated requirements of its NPDES permit asdetailed bdow. Thevidaionsare esablishedinthe City’s
monitoring data, raw data, records of the City, self-monitoring reports and records located a other
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agendesinduding the RWQCB, Sonoma County Hedth Department, police and fire departments
BACKGROUND

The City owns maintains, and operates wadteweter treetment, refuse and disposd fadilities The
City’ streatment fadility isamgor discharger asdefined by the Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”).
Thisfadlity discherges both directly and indirectly into the Russan River anditstributaries TheCity isthe
largest privatey owned treetment works (“POTW?”) discharger in North Coagt Region 1. By permit the
City isdlowed to discharge treated sawage to tributaries of the Russan River equd to five (5) percent of
the River' sdaly flow. These discharges often make up morethan fifty (50) percent of the actud recaiving
waters such as the Laguna de Santa Rosawhich is an extendvewater body listed by the EPA asimpaired
for sediment and nutrients induding phogphate. Nutrients, induding phosphete, are discharged from the
City’ s various ponds and irrigated lands and sediment is released during redlamation operations.

Pursuant to Clean Water Act 8§ 301(a) , 33 U.S.C. §1311(a), the EPA and the Sate of Cdiifornia
have formally conduded thet violaionsby the City of itsNPDES Permit, are prohibited by law. Beneficd
uses of mogt portions of the Russan River Basin Areaare being affected in a prohibited manner by these
violations Pursuant to Cleen Water Act § 304, 33 U.S.C. § 1311, the EPA and the Sate have identified
the City’'s treatment fadility as a point source, the discharges from which contribute to violaions of
goplicable water queity sandards

The City’ s NPDES Parmit indudes Recaiving Water Limitations thet implement the weter quality
objectives contained in the Water Qudity Control Plan for the North Coagt Region (“Basin Flan™). The
NPDES Permit dsoind udesaMonitoring and Reporting Program thet isused to hd p measure compliance
within the limitations contained in the NPDES Permit. Vidlaionsof ether the Recaiving Weter Limitations
or the Monitoring and Reporting Program are vidlations of the Permit.

Currertly, the City’s NPDES Permit recognizes numerous different locations within the sysem
where discharges to surface waters may occur. The mgority of the trested wastewater discharged from
the LagunaSubregiond Storage and Digposd Sysemisdischarged from variouspondsinthesysem. The
Discharge and Recaiving Water Monitoring Program adopted for the City and contained in the Regiond
Water Board Order was edablished to be an gopropriate and meaningful discharge and receiving water
monitoring program. Theprogramwasdesigned to goply to multipledischarge pointsunder many probable
discharge scenarios.

The Monitoring and Reporting Program in the City’ s NPDES Parmit requiires that monitoring of
the recaiving water is to be performed upstream and downstream of the point of discharge a& specified
locetions, & gpproximatdy the same time the wadtewater being discharged to the recalving water is
monitored. Comparing the results of the different monitored congtituentsfrom the discharged wastewater
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and from therecaiving waters upstream and downdream of the dischargeisthe current meansof meesuring
compliance with the NPDES Permit conditions

The vidlaions enumerated b ow areevidenced in the City’ sown recordsind uding but not limited
toitssdf monitoring reports, monitoring data, compliance documents, correspondence, emalls, laboratory
notebooks, recordings, tapes, computers and the like aswel asrecords from other agendesinduding but
not limited to the RWQCB, Sonoma County Hedlth, palice and fire departments.

The City has vidlated the requirements of its NPDES permit, the Basin Plan and the gpplicable
Code of Federd Regulaions (“CHRS’) for discharge limitations, effluent limitations, recalving weter
limitations, and monitoring and reporting requirements as reported by the City in its discharge monitoring
reports (“DMR”) and other documentation filed with the RWQCB or generated by other agendies.
Furthermore, these violations are continuing.

The RWQCB adopted arevised Water Quity Control Plan for the North Coast Region Basin
(Badan Flan) on May 23, 1996. This updated and consolidated Plan represents the RQWCB's madter
water qudity control planning document. Therevised Basin Plan was subsequently gpproved by the Sate
Water Resources Control Board (“SWRCB”) and the Office of Adminigrative Law. A summary of the
regulatory provisonsis contained in Title 23 of the Cdifornia Code of Regulaions, Section 3912. The
Badn Plan identifies benefica uses and water quaity objectives for waters of the State in the Region,
induding surface watersand ground waters. The Basin Flan dso identifieseffluent limitationsand discherge
prohibitions intended to protect beneficdd uses. The Basn Plan and dl of its limitations have been
incorporated into the City’ s Permit.

In 2001 the City and River Watch entered into a settlement agreement whereby River Wetch
agread nat to file suit againg the City based upon NPDES permit violaions-occurring prior to May 16,
2004. Although thisNOT I CE identifies violations occurring

over the pagt two years if asuit isfiled River Watch will only bring the action for vidlations occurring after
May 16, 2004.

VIOLATIONS
The CWA requires that any notice to a discharger regarding an dleged vidlaion of an effluent
sandard or limitation, or aviolation of an order with respect thereto, shdl indude auffident informetion to
permit the redpient to identify:

1. The specific standard, limitation, or order alleged to have been violated.
City of Santa Rosa
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To comply with this requirement River Watch has identified the City's NPDES Permit with
spedificity. It hasdso usad the actud language of the Permit to describe the various violations,

2. The activity alleged to constitute a violation.

To comply with this requirement River Wetch has st forth bdow narratives describing with
particularity the activities leading to vidlations

3. The person or persons responsible for the alleged violation.

The person or parsonsresponsblefor the dleged violationsarethe City and those of itsemployees
who are respongble for compliance with the City’ s Permit.

4. The location of the alleged violation.

The location or locations of the various vidlaions areidentified in the City’ s Permit and in records
ather cregted or maintained by or for the City which rdae to the City’ s POTW and rdated activities.

5. The date or dates of violation or a reasonable range of dates during which
the alleged activity occurred.

River Watch hasexamined the City’ srecordsfor thepagt two years. Therefore, therangeof dates
covered by thisNOT I CE isfrom July 15, 2002 through July 15, 2004.  River Wetch will from timeto
time update thisNOT | CE toindudedl violaionswhich occur efter thedate of thisNOTICE. Some of
the violations are continuous, therefore each day isaviolaion. Theremander of the violations and dates
of violaion are evidenced in the City’s own records or the records of other agendies including the
RWQCB, Sonoma County Hedth Department and police and fire departments.

6. The full name, address, and telephone number of the person giving notice.

Thisinformation can be found a the end of thisNOT I CE.

The fallowing violations occurred between July 15, 2002 and July 15, 2004 and are evidenced in
records of the City and the RWQCB identified inthisNOT I CE. Theligingsbdow areorganized around
the City’ s Permit usng the same headings asin the Permit itsdlf.

1. Thelagunade Santa Rosaislised by the CWA 8 303(d) asimpaired for nutrientsinduding
phosphate. The City isthe angle, largest contributing source of phosphate to the Laguna de SantaRosa
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By discharging a prohibited quantity of phosphete the City is causing contamination and a nuisance as
oefined by Cdifornia Water Code (“CWC”) Section 13050. By discharging a prohibited quantity of
phosphate, the City isadversdy affecting benefidd usesasthose usesare defined inthe CWA, the CWC,
the Baan Plan and in CFRs. Phosphate is a biogimulant. The phosphate discharged by the City causes
anutrient load which exceads the budget for the Laguna. This eutrophication resuitsin dgd blooms and
the proliferation of surface plants. The dgae and surface plants reduce, and in some cases degtroy, the
qudity of the habitat for sdmonids. The surface plants are known to harbor mosquitos induding species
which carry disease. One of the problems with phosphate is thet it accumulates in the bottom depodts.
Thus when the bottom deposits are disturbed it causes prohibited amounts of phospheteto be discharged
into the Laguna. In some case the discharges by the City actualy cause resuspenson of phosphate. Each
and eveary day the City discharges, these discharges vidlate the fallowing provisons of the Permit:

a A(2) DISCHARGE PROHIBITIONS - Cresation of a pollution, contamination, or
nuisance, asdefined by Section 13050 of the CdiforniaWeater Code (CWC) isprohibited. [Hedlth
and Safety Code, Section 5411]

b. C(7) RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS - The discharge shdl not cause bottom
depogitsin the recaving waters to the extent that such deposits cause nuisance or adversdly affect
bendfica uses

C. C(8) RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS - The discharge shdl not contain
concentrations of biosimulants which promote objectionable aguatic or dgd growths

to the extent that such growth causes nuisance or adversdly affect beneficid usesof therecaiving
waers

d. C(13) RECEIVINGWATERLIMITATIONS- Thisdischargemust not causeaviolaion
of any gpplicable water quality sandards for recaiving waters adopted by the Regiond Water
Boad or the State Water Board as required by the Federd Cleen Water Act (CWA) and
regulaions adopted thereunder. If more dringent gpplicable water qudity standards are
promulgated or approved pursuant to Section 303 of the CWA, or amendments thereto, the
Regiond Water Board will revise and maodify this Permit in accordance with such more stringent
Sandards

2. The City has numerous ponds in which it stores and rel eases tregted wadtewater. A mass
baanceandyssreved sthet these pondsarenot integral and lesk into the surrounding ground, groundweter
and adjecent waters of the United Statesinduding the Lagunade SantaRosa. Lesking pondsare neither
described nor regulated in the City’ s Permit. Lesking ponds create apallution, contamination or nuisance
as ddfined by CWC Section 13050. As the ponds legk continudly the City is discharging during the
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discharge prohibition period of May 15" through September 30" . Therefore, the City is vidlating the
following Permit condiitions each and every day the ponds contain wastewaer:

a A(1) DISCHARGE PROHIBITIONS - The discharge of any wagte not spedificaly
regulated by this Permit is prohibited.

b. A(2) DISCHARGE PROHIBITIONS - Cregtion of a pollution, contamination, or
nuisance, as defined by Section 13050 of the CdiforniaWeater Code (CWC) isprohibited. [Hedlth
and Safety Code, Section 5411]

C. A(7) DISCHARGE PROHIBITIONS - The discharge of wagte from the Laguna
Subregiond Fadilities to the Russan River or its tributaries during the period May 15 through
September 30 each year is prohibited.

During the discharge season, each day it isedimated that the ponds legk in amounts sufficient to
cause the City to excead its 5% limit. When the edimated leskege is added to the discharge figures, the
City isvidaing thefalowing Permit limitation:

d. A(8) During the period of October 1 through May 14, discharges of advanced trested
wastewater shal not excead five percant of theflow of the Russan River asmeasured a Hadlenda
Bridge (USGS gauge No. 11-4670.00).

The City neither monitors nor reportsthese prohibited rd eases, therefore each day these rdeases
occur the City isvidlaing its MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM.

3. TheCity hasan extensve collection sysemwhichispart of the Laguna Subregiond Fedlities
Discharges from the callection system occur continualy due to breeks in the pipes carrying sewage.
Discharges of raw or partidly treated sewage create ahedth risk to the environment and to the public. A
meass baance andyss indicates that losses of raw sawage occur in the syslem on adally bass. This
andyssisdso supported by theinflow and infiltration (*1&1”) datawhich showsanincresse of flow during
winter months indicating an influx of groundwater into the collection systemn due to bregks in the piping.
Although some of the 1&1 may be coming from illegdl connections to the collection sysem, many of these
illegd connectionshave been diminated. Mogt of theseillegd discharges occur to land whichisnot owned
or under agreament to use by the City. These discharges vidlate the fallowing provisons of the Permit:

a A(2) DISCHARGE PROHIBITIONS - Cregtion of a pallution, contamination, or
nuisance, asdefined by Section 13050 of the CdiforniaWater Code (CWC) isprohibited. [Hedth
and Safety Code, Section 5411]
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b. A(3) DISCHARGE PROHIBITIONS - There shd| be no discharge of advanced trested
water or any wastewaters to land whichisnot owned or under agreement to use by the permittee.

C. A(6) DISCHARGE PROHIBITIONS - The discherge of untreated or partidly trested
wagte from the Laguna Subregiond Fadlitiesis prohibited.

The City only reports a portion of these discharges. Only those discharges that are rleased to
surface Sreets seem to gppear inthe City’ srecords and Wadtewater Overflow Reports. To the extent the
City does not monitor or report other prohibited releases each day these unreported releases occur, the
City isviolating its MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM.

4.  The City mantans an extensve reuse program which indudes goproximatdly 6,236 acres
of urban and agricultura land thet is irrigeted with trested sewvage. Many of these lands lie adjecent to
waters of the United Statesinduding the Laguna de SantaRosa. Some of theirrigated propertiesinclude
dairies and City property where animd and human wagte is land Spread. The treated sewage and solid
wagesae highin nutrients. Treated sawageis often goplied in excess of the naturd cgpadity of the land
to asamilate the nutrients creating an excess nutrient load which iswashed from thefiddsduring rains The
depogtion of these wadtes often oocur a atime of the year when full assmilation and breskdown of the
nutrientsisincomplete prior to thefirg rains, or S0 cdled “firg flush.” During fird flush excessveamounts
of nutrients are washed from these fidds into the Russan River, Laguna de Santa Rosaand other waters
of the United States  Subsequent rains dso carry prohibited amounts of nutrients to the effected
waterways. Testing of discharge from these fidds reveds a high content of phogphetes and nitrogenous
compounds. These discharges do not seem to be regulated. Each day it rainsin excess of 0.5 inches,
nutrient laden rain is discharged from the land irrigated by the City in violaion of the following Permit
conditions

a A(2) DISCHARGE PROHIBITIONS - Creetion of a pollution, contamingtion, or
nuisance, asdefined by Section 13050 of the CdiforniaWeater Code (CWC) isprohibited. [Hedlth
and Safety Code, Section 5411]

b. A(3) DISCHARGE PROHIBITIONS - There shd| be no discharge of advanced trested
water or any wastewaersto land which isnot owned or under agreement to use by the permittee.

C. A(7) DISCHARGE PROHIBITIONS - The discharge of wadte from the Laguna
Subregiond Fadilities to the Russan River or its tributaries during the period May 15 through
September 30 each year is prohibited.

d. D(1) WATER RECLAMATION REQUIREMENTS - Redamed waer shdl be
meanaged in conformance with regulations contained in Title 22, Divison 4, Chepter 3, Cdifornia
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Code of Regulations.

e. D(2) WATER RECLAMATION REQUIREMENTS - The use of redamed weter thet
results in unreasonable waste of water is prohibited.

f. D(3) WATER RECLAMATION REQUIREMENTS- The use of redamed water thet
cregtes a condition of pollution or nuisanceis prohibited.

o. D(5) WATERRECLAMATION REQUIREMENTS- Redamed weter shdll begpplied

in such amanner 0 as not to excead vegetative demand or fidd capecity.

5. The mgority of the City’s discharges to surface waters occur from its various ponds. In
comparison to the waters into which they discharge, the ponds are rdatively sagneate, lower in dissolved
oxygen (“DQ"), higher in temperature and vary in pH and turbidity. The RWQCB North Coast Region
does nat dlow for mixing zones. Therefore the discharges must not lower the DO, raise the temperature
or turbidity or dter the pH of the recaiving waters more than aspecified amount a the point of discharge.
In addition to spedific numeric limitations, the City's Permit contains narraive sandards (see Permit C.
RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS 4 - 10). By law it is the City’'s burden to prove it isin
compliance with the conditions of its Permit. Therefore, each day the City dischargesit mus havethedata
to proveitisin compliance with the requirements of its Permit. To the extent the City failsto possesssuch
datait isin violation of the CWA for fallure to monitor and/or report.

On examining the City's records River Watch could nat find any evidence of compliance with
RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS4 - 10 aswell as numeric limitationsfor amgority of the ponds
from which the City discharges to recaving waters. In addition to violaions for failure to monitor and/or
report eech day the City discharges from its ponds and its discharges vidlate the fallowing Permit
conditions, the City isin vidaion of the fallowing Permit provisons

a C(1) RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS - The discharge shdl not cause the
dissolved oxygen concentration of the recalving waters to be depressed bdow 7.0 mgll. In the
evant thet the recaiving waters are determined to have dissolved oxygen concentretion of less
than 7.0 mg/l, the discharge shdl not depress the dissolved oxygen concentration below the
exiging levd.

b. C(2) RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS - The discharge shdl not cause the pH
of the recaiving waters to be depressad beow 6.5 nor raised above 8.5. Within this range, the
discharge shdl not cause the pH of the recaiving waters to be changed a any time more than
0.5 units from that which occurs naturdly. If the pH of the recalving water is less than 6.5, the
discharge shdl not cause a further depresson of the pH of the recaving water. If the pH of the
recaving weter is greater than 8.5, the discharge shdl not cause a further increese in the pH of
the recaving waer.

C. C(3) RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS - The discharge shdl not cause the
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turbidity of the receiving waters to be increasad more than 20 percent above naturdly occurring
background levels

d. C(4) RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS - The discharge shdl not cause the
recaiving waters to contain floating materids, induding solids, liquids foams, and scum, in
concentrations that cause nuisance or adversdy afect beneficid uses

e. C(5) RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS - The discharge shdl not cause the
receiving waters to contain taste or odor-producing substances in concentrations that impart
undesirable tastes or odors to fish flesh or other edible products of aguatic origin, that cause
nuisance, or that adversdy affect beneficd uses.

f. C(6) RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS - The discharge shdl not cause
aesheticdly undesrable discoloration of the recaiving waters.

o. C(7) RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS - The discharge shdl not cause bottom
depodts in the recaving waters to the extent that such depodits cause nuisance or adversdy
affect benficid uses

h. C(8) RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS - The discharge shdl not contain
concentrations of biogimulants which promote objectionable aguatic or dgd growths to the
extat that such growths cause nuisance or adversdly affect benefidd uses of the recaiving
waters.

. C(9) RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS - The discharge shdl not cause the
recaving waters to contain toxic substances in concentrations thet are toxic to, degrade, or that
produce detrimental physiologica responses in humans or animeas or cause acute or chronic
toxidty in plants or agutic life.

j. C(10) RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS -The fdlowing temperature limitations
apply to the discharge to the recaiving waters

i. When the recaving water is below 58EF, the discharge shdl cause an increese of no
more than Z£F in the recaving water, and shdl nat increase the temperature of the
recaving water beyond 59EF. No indantaneous increese in receiving water
temperature shdl exceed 4EF & any time.

Ii. When the recalving water is between 59EF and 67EF, the discharge Shdl cause an
increase of no more than EF in the recaiving water. No indantaneous increese in
recalving water temperature shdl exceed [EF & any time.

Iii. When the recaiving water is above 68EF, the discharge shdl not cause an increese
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in temperature of the recaiving water.

K. C(11) RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS - The discharge must not cause
bioaccumulaion of pedticide, fungicide, wood trestment chemicd, or other toxic pollutant
concentrations in bottom sediments or aquitic life to levds which are harmful to humen hedlth.

. C(12) RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS - The discharge must not cause the
recaving waters to contain oils, greases, waxes, or other maerids in concentrations thet result
in a vigble film or coating on the surface of the water or on objects in the water that cause
nuisance or that otherwise adversdy affect beneficid uses

m  C(13) RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS - This discharge must not cause a
violation of any gpplicable water qudity Sandards for recaiving weters adopted by the Regiond

Water Board or the State Water Board as required by the Federa Clean Water Act (CWA)

and regulations adopted thereunder.  If more stringent gpplicable water qudity sandards are
promulgated or gpproved pursuant to Section 303 of the CWA, or amendments thereto, the

Regiond Water Board will revise and modify this Permit in accordance with such more
gringent gandards

These enumerated violations are basad upon review of monitoring data submitted by the City to
the RWQCB and other documents as described above.  In addition to dl of the above vidlaions, this
NOTICE covers any and dl vidations of Permit No. CA0022764 evidenced by any of the records
previoudy identified. This NOTICE dso covers any and dl vidlations by the City which may have
occurred but for which deta may not have been availadle or submitted or goparent from the face of the
reports or data submitted by the City to the RWQCB or generated by other agencies.

Northern Cdifornia River Watch is a 501(c)(3) non-profit corporation dedicated to the
protection and enhancement of the waters of the Sate of Cdiforniainduding dl rivers, creeks dreams
and groundwater in Northern Cdifornia 1t is organized under the laws of the Sate of Cdifornia Its
addressis 74 Man Stredt, Suite D, Occidentd, CA. Itsmailing addressis P.O. Box 1360, Occidentd,
CA 95465. Itsphoneis 707-874-2579.

The vidaions of the City as set forth in this NOTICE effect the hedth and enjoyment of
members of River Watch who resde and recregte in the Russan River watershed area. The members
of River Watch use this watershed for domestic water supply, agricultura water supply, recredtion,
gports, hiking, photography, nature waks and the like. The effected watershed is the mgor source of
drinking weter in many of the members homes Thar hedth, use and enjoyment of this naturd resource
is spedificaly impaired by the City’ svidaions of the Cleen Water Act.

River Weatch has retained legd counsd to represant it in this matter. All communications should
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be addressed to:

Jack Siver, Esquire

Law Office of Jack Siver
P.O. Box 5469

Santa Rosa, CA 95402-5469
Phone 707-528-8175

This NOTICE aufficently sates grounds for filing suit. At the dose of the 60-day natice
period or shortly thereefter River Wetch intends file a citizen's suit under Cleen Water Act 8§ 505(9)
agand the City for violations at the City’'s wedte trestment fadlity. During the 60-day natice period
River Wetch is willing to discuss effective remedies for the violations noted in this NOTICE. River
Watch isdso willing to enter into a ninety (90) day talling agreament with the City preserving the rights
of the parties and dlowing for meaningful discusson of the issues described above.

Vey truly yours

5]

Jack Slver
cc:
Miched Leavitt, Adminigrator
U.S Environmentd Protection Agency
1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. Mail Code 3213A
Waghington, D.C. 20460

Wayne Nadtri, Regiond Adminidretor

U.S Environmentad  Protection Agency Region 9
75 Hawthorne S.

San Francisco, CA 94105

Cdegte Cantll, Executive Director
State Water Resources Control Board
P.O. Box 100

Sacramento, Cdifornia 95812-0100

Brien Fardl, City Attorney
City of SantaRosa

100 Santa Rosa Ave.

Santa Rosa, Cdlifornia 95404
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